

## CONSTITUTION INDEX

3. ARTICLE 1 **NAME**
- ARTICLE 2 **PURPOSE**
- ARTICLE 3 **STATEMENT OF FAITH**
  - 3.1 God
  - 3.2 The Bible
  - 3.3 The Human Condition
4. 3.4 Jesus Christ
- 3.5 The Work of Christ
- 3.6 The Holy Spirit
- 3.7 The Church
- 3.8 Christian Living
5. 3.9 Christ's Return
- 3.10 Response and Eternal Destiny
- ARTICLE 4 **CHRISTIAN DISCIPLESHIP AND CHRISTIAN CONDUCT**
  - 4.1 Ordinances – Baptism & The Lord's Supper
  - 4.2 Discipleship
6. 4.3 Christian Conduct
8. ARTICLE 5 **DISSOLUTION**

## BYLAWS INDEX

9. ARTICLE 1 **MEMBERSHIP**
  - 1.1 Requirements for Membership
  - 1.2 Admission of Members
  - 1.3 Membership Roll
  - 1.4 Dismissal of Members
10. ARTICLE 2 **EXECUTIVE BOARD**
  - 2.1 Membership
  - 2.2 Duties
11. ARTICLE 3 **COMMITTEES**
  - 3.1 Board Appointed
  - 3.2 Pastor Appointed
12. ARTICLE 4 **ANNUAL MEETING**
  - 4.1 Business
  - 4.2 Quorum
  - 4.3 Voting Eligibility
13. ARTICLE 5 **PASTORAL VOTE, CHANGE, AND CALL**
  - 5.1 Vote
  - 5.2 Change
14. 5.3 Pastoral Call  
ARTICLE 6 **AMENDMENTS**
  - 6.1 Amendments to the CONSTITUTION
  - 6.2 Amendments to the BYLAWS
15. ARTICLE 7 **DISSOLUTION** (moved to Constitution)
- ARTICLE 8 **CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY**
  - 8.1 Purpose
  - 8.2 Definitions
  - 8.3 Procedures
  - 8.4 Records of Proceedings
  - 8.5 Compensation
  - 8.6 Annual Statements
  - 8.7 Periodic Reviews
  - 8.8 Use of Outside Experts

or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.

c) No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.

## 8.6 Annual Statements

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with governing board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person:

- a) Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy,
- b) Has read and understands the policy,
- c) Has agreed to comply with the policy, and
- d) Understands the Corporation is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

## 8.7 Periodic Reviews

To ensure the Corporation operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- a) Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining.
- b) Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management Corporations conform to the Corporation's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction.

## 8.8 Use of Outside Experts

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Article 8.7, the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

## ARTICLE ONE: NAME

1.1 The name of this organization shall be:

### **The Buckley Gospel Tabernacle**

1.2 The Buckley Gospel Tabernacle is affiliated with the Great Lakes District of the Evangelical Free Church of America.

## ARTICLE TWO: PURPOSE

2.1 The purposes of this organization shall be as follows:

**Vision:** Changed lives

**Mission:** Love God, love people, make disciples

## ARTICLE THREE: STATEMENT OF FAITH

### Article 3.1 **God**

We believe in one God, Creator of all things, holy, infinitely perfect, and eternally existing in a loving unity of three equally divine Persons: the Father, the Son and the Holy Spirit. Having limitless knowledge and sovereign power, God has graciously purposed from eternity to redeem a people for Himself and to make all things new for His own glory.

### Article 3.2 **The Bible**

We believe that God has spoken in the Scriptures, both Old and New Testaments, through the words of human authors. As the verbally inspired Word of God, the Bible is without error in the original writings, the complete revelation of His will for salvation, and the ultimate authority by which every realm of human knowledge and endeavor should be judged. Therefore, it is to be believed in all that it teaches, obeyed in all that it requires, and trusted in all that it promises.

### Article 3.3 **The Human Condition**

We believe that God created Adam and Eve in His image, but they sinned when tempted by Satan. In union with Adam, human beings are sinners by nature and by choice, alienated from God, and under His wrath. Only through God's saving work in Jesus Christ can we be rescued, reconciled and renewed.

### Article 3.4 **Jesus Christ**

We believe that Jesus Christ is God incarnate, fully God and fully man, one Person in two natures. Jesus—Israel's promised Messiah—was conceived through the Holy Spirit and born of the virgin Mary. He lived a sinless life, was crucified under Pontius Pilate, arose bodily from the dead, ascended into heaven and sits at the right hand of God the Father as our High Priest and Advocate.

### Article 3.5 **The Work of Christ**

We believe that Jesus Christ, as our representative and substitute, shed His blood on the cross as the perfect, all-sufficient sacrifice for our sins. His atoning death and victorious resurrection constitute the only ground for salvation.

### Article 3.6 **The Holy Spirit**

We believe that the Holy Spirit, in all that He does, glorifies the Lord Jesus Christ. He convicts the world of its guilt. He regenerates sinners, and in Him they are baptized into union with Christ and adopted as heirs in the family of God. He also indwells, illuminates, guides, equips and empowers believers for Christ-like living and service.

### Article 3.7 **The Church**

We believe that the true church comprises all who have been justified by God's grace through faith alone in Christ alone. They are united by the Holy Spirit in the body of Christ, of which He is the Head. The true church is manifest in local churches, whose membership should be composed only of believers. The Lord Jesus mandated two ordinances, baptism and the Lord's Supper, which visibly and tangibly express the gospel. Though they are not the means of salvation, when celebrated by the church in genuine faith, these ordinances confirm and nourish the believer.

### Article 3.8 **Christian Living**

We believe that God's justifying grace must not be separated from His sanctifying power and purpose. God commands us to love Him supremely and others sacrificially, and to live out our faith with care for one another, compassion toward the poor and justice for the oppressed. With God's Word, the Spirit's power, and fervent prayer in Christ's name, we are to combat the spiritual forces of evil. In obedience to Christ's commission, we are to make disciples among all people, always bearing witness to the gospel in word and deed.

transaction or arrangement is in the Corporation's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

#### 4) Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy:

- a) If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
- b) If, after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

#### 8.4 **Records of Proceedings**

The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board delegated powers shall contain:

- a) The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the governing board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.
- b) The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

#### 8.5 **Compensation**

- a) A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- b) A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial. A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under Article III, Section 2, a person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

### 8.3 Procedures

- 1) Duty to Disclose: In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- 2) Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists: After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.
- 3) Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest:
  - a) An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
  - b) The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
  - c) After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
  - d) If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the

### Article 3.9 Christ's Return

We believe in the personal, bodily and glorious return of our Lord Jesus Christ. The coming of Christ, at a time known only to God, demands constant expectancy and, as our blessed hope, motivates the believer to godly living, sacrificial service and energetic mission.

### Article 3.10 Response and Eternal Destiny

We believe that God commands everyone everywhere to believe the gospel by turning to Him in repentance and receiving the Lord Jesus Christ. We believe that God will raise the dead bodily and judge the world, assigning the unbeliever to condemnation and eternal conscious punishment and the believer to eternal blessedness and joy with the Lord in the new heaven and the new earth, to the praise of His glorious grace. Amen.

## ARTICLE FOUR: CHRISTIAN DISCIPLESHIP AND CHRISTIAN CONDUCT

### 4.1 Ordinances

The Bible teaches the observance of two ordinances:

- a) Baptism  
We believe that baptism by water is the symbol of one's union by faith with Christ in death, burial, and resurrection; constitutes a public confession of faith in Christ; and is the answer of a good conscience toward God. Baptism, preferably by immersion, is for those who give evidence of having been born again, and is restricted to those of an age of accountability. (Matthew 28:19; Romans 6:3-5; 1 Peter 3:21)
- b) The Lord's Supper  
The Lord's supper is a memorial of Christ's death; a center of communion and fellowship; a testimony to saving faith; and a visible seal of Christ's redemptive covenant. It is to be observed only by the true child of God, and is open to all true believers. The Scriptures strongly urge that one examine himself before partaking of this ordinance. (1 Corinthians 11:23-29)

### 4.2 Discipleship

We believe the overarching aim of discipleship is for the Christian to live a life of obedience to God, summarized in the following Scriptures:

The Great Commandment – “Love the Lord your God with all your heart and with all your soul and with all your mind and with all your strength.” The second is this: “Love your neighbor as yourself. There is no commandment greater than these.” (Mark 12:30)

The Great Commission – “Therefore go and make disciples of all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father and of the Son and of the Holy Spirit, and teaching them to obey everything I have commanded you.” (Matthew 28:19-20a)

“My command is this: love each other as I have loved you.” (John 15:12)

We believe that Scripture teaches that we are saved by grace alone through faith alone (Romans and Galatians). We also affirm that the true believer’s life will display the fruit of the Holy Spirit’s work (Galatians 5) and be marked by obedience.

“If you love me, you will obey what I command. And I will ask the Father, and He will give you another counselor to be with you forever--the Spirit of truth.” (John 14:15-17a)

“Faith by itself, if it is not accompanied by action, is dead.” (James 2:17b)

#### 4.3 Christian Conduct

Where the Bible speaks, we speak; where the Bible is silent, we are silent, in essentials – unity; in opinions – liberty; and in all things – love.

We believe that legitimate sexual relations are exercised solely within covenant marriage between one man and one woman. The Bible deems all other sexual activities as sin. (1 Corinthians 6:18)

We believe that marriage is defined solely as the union of one man and one woman. This union was originated by God and affirmed by Jesus. This definition excludes same-sex, transgender and polygamous unions. (Genesis 2:20; Matthew 19:4-6)

We will faithfully follow these scripturally supported definitions of gender, sexuality and marriage in the teachings and practices of this church, her staff and members. At the same time, The Tabernacle will provide an environment that welcomes people who struggle with sexual sin. We seek to love all people in Jesus’ name, pointing them towards Christ’s power to forgive and heal.

On matters of discipleship, conduct and practice, members should

- a) The proposed change is to be presented to the Executive Board. If approved by a majority vote of the Board, the proposed change is to be read to the membership present at a regular Sunday morning service at least once before the meeting at which the proposed change is to be voted on.
- b) At the Annual Membership Meeting, the proposed changes will be presented to the assembly in the form of a motion and acted upon as a regular motion. A simple majority of those voting being necessary to pass the motion.

#### **ARTICLE SEVEN: DISSOLUTION**

Moved dissolution to Constitution

#### **ARTICLE EIGHT: CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY**

##### 8.1 Purpose

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect The Buckley Gospel Tabernacle’s interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an officer or director of the Corporation or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to non-profit and charitable corporations.

##### 8.2 Definitions

- 1) Interested Person: Any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person
- 2) Financial Interest: A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:
  - a) An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement,
  - b) A compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity or individual with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or
  - c) A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

the Church of our Lord Jesus Christ.

### 5.3 Pastoral Call

- a) In securing a new Pastor the Executive Board shall act as set forth In Article Two, 2.2 b and c.
- b) The Board shall present to the Membership for its vote, candidates it has approved after reviewing resumes’, considering recommendations and carefully interviewing prospective Pastors.
- c) Moving expenses for the incoming Pastor shall be covered by The Tabernacle when those expenses have been approved by the Executive Board.
- d) Lead Pastor is required to begin securing an EFCA Credential within eighteen (18) months of the commencement of ministry. Other pastoral staff are required to at the discretion of the lead pastor.

## ARTICLE SIX: AMENDMENTS

### 6.1 Amendments to the CONSTITUTION

The Constitution of the Buckley Gospel Tabernacle may be amended as follows:

- a) Any proposed change must be submitted in writing to the Executive Board. If approved by a majority vote of the Board, it shall then be read to the church membership in two (2) Sunday morning services just prior to the annual membership meeting or a specially called meeting for this purpose.
- b) At the business meeting, copies of the proposed changes shall be made available to all voting members, and an opportunity shall be given for thorough discussion of the changes. A 2/3 majority of those voting being necessary to pass the amendments.
- c) No amendment shall be allowed, however, which is contrary to the purposes of this organization or contour which destroy any Article in its Statement of Faith.

### 6.2 Amendments to the BYLAWS

The Bylaws may be amended as follows:

always remember the personal and communal implications as set forth in the following Scriptures:

“Continue to work out your salvation with fear and trembling, for it is God who works in you to will and to act according to His good purpose.” (Philippians 2:12)

“Make every effort to keep the unity of the Spirit through the bond of peace. There is one body and one Spirit – just as you were called to one hope when you were called – one Lord, one faith, one baptism; one God and Father of all, who is over all and through all and in all.” (Ephesians 4:3-5)

Jesus’ Prayer For All Believers “That all of them may be one, Father, just as you are in me and I am in you. May they also be in us so that the world may believe that you have sent me.” (John 17:21)

The follower of Christ is expected to personally pursue God in obedience, prayer, worship, and in strengthening that comes through the fellowship of believers. Furthermore, members are expected to submit to the organizational leadership and spiritual accountability of the church elders and pastors, and to pray faithfully for them. Members are expected to participate as they are gifted and able in the edification of the church body. (Romans 12)

The Christian must carefully consider the teachings of Scripture, which is our authority on matters of Christian conduct, and to faithfully obey the prompting of the Holy Spirit. On moral issues that are clearly set forth in Scripture, the member is expected to strictly adhere. On matters that are unclear or open to interpretation, the member is expected to, “Accept him whose faith is weak, without passing judgement on disputable matters,... to not put any stumbling block or obstacle in your brother’s way,” and to “make every effort to do what leads to peace and to mutual edification.” (Romans 14:1, 13, 19)

Please also consider the following guiding Scriptures: Romans 12:1; Galatians 5:19-26; Ephesians 5:1-5; Colossians 3:12-14; Psalm 139; Matthew 5:32; Romans 1:24-31; Romans 13:1-7; 1 Thessalonians 4:7; James 4:11, 5:9; 1 Peter 1:15-16; 1 Corinthians 6:9-12, 20; Ephesians 5:18; Colossians 3:5-10.

## **ARTICLE FIVE: DISSOLUTION**

### 5.1 The Buckley Gospel Tabernacle

This Church shall have the power to receive, either by gift or purchase, and to hold such real, personal or mixed property as is authorized by the laws of the State of Michigan and as is deemed necessary for the business of the Church, and shall have the power to dispose of such property by mortgage, deed or otherwise. All such property shall be in the name of the Church.

In order to maintain the integrity of The Buckley Gospel Tabernacle church, when an irreconcilable division occurs within the body which threatens its unity and/or existence, District Leadership, along with other members of the Great Lakes District Board of Directors, has the prerogative of taking the initiative to mediate the situation.

In case of dissolution of the church organization, the assets shall be assigned to the Great Lakes District Conference of the Evangelical Free Church to enable said conference to renew the work or use the values thereof for further Gospel enterprises. The church shall be considered dissolved if so decided by the church, or when the church has not held an annual meeting for three years, or when less than six members remain.

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its members, trustees, officers or other private persons, except that the corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of section 501(c)(3) purposes. No substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be carrying on of propaganda, and the corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from Federal income tax under section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code, or (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170 (c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code, or the corresponding section of any future federal tax code.

- i) Illness or care of one who is ill
  - ii) Required work at time of meeting
  - iii) Out of town at time of meeting
- c) All decisions on voting eligibility shall be made by the Board or a committee appointed by the Board. Appeals on Board rulings may be made to the membership meeting in a business session. Since decisions affecting the spiritual life of the church are of great importance, the rules on voting eligibility should be carefully and conscientiously applied.

\*\* The 6-month residency requirement may be waived by the Board for someone who is away on missionary/ministerial work, provided they are in residence for some part of the previous 12 months before the business meeting, and provided the board believes the individual is reasonably informed as to the issues being voted on.

## **ARTICLE FIVE: PASTORAL VOTE, CHANGE, AND CALL**

### 5.1 **Vote**

A Pastoral vote may be taken yearly, in the month of March, if recommended by the Executive Board, or at the end of an appointed term, or as requested by a majority vote of the membership resulting from a duly called meeting. A "duly called" meeting of the membership is a meeting which has been requested by at least six (6) members of the church, approved by the Executive Board, and announced at least three (3) services in advance. (Worship Services or letter mailed to each member)

### 5.2 **Change**

- a) A majority positive vote shall leave it to the discretion of the Pastor as to whether or not to retain his position. A majority negative vote shall call for a Pastoral change.
- b) In case of a Pastoral change, the Executive Board shall work with the Pastor toward an amicable agreement as to time, severance monies, and any aid in the moving process.
- c) Pastoral changes should be handled with utmost care, concern and compassion, considering the feelings of all involved. It behooves both Pastor and people to be prepared to accept change graciously and in a manner that will do the least harm to



## ARTICLE FOUR: ANNUAL MEETING

### 4.1 **Business**

- a) Both the Fiscal Year and Church Business Year shall end May 31st each year.
- b) The Annual Business Meeting of the Church shall be held on a duly announced (at least 3 services in advance) meeting at the conclusion of the fiscal year. At this Annual Meeting, reports shall be given by the various officers, ministries, committees of the Church to keep the members of the Church informed of the activities of the various facets of the Church work during the past year.
- c) The Executive Board shall select a nominating committee from its members. The committee shall solicit nominations from the membership, the Pastor(s) and other Executive Board members. The committee shall communicate the biblical qualifications and requirements of the position to the nominees, request their consent or interview as they deem necessary. This committee shall present a list of eligible nominees to the Executive Board for approval by a (2/3) two-thirds vote. Approved nominees are to be put on the ballot at the Annual Membership Meeting, where they will be voted on by the membership. Nominations will not be accepted from the floor at the Annual Membership Meeting.
- d) Other business deemed Membership Business is to be cared for at this meeting.

### 4.2 **Quorum**

A quorum at any dually called meeting of the church membership shall consist of at least 2/3 executive board **AND** members who are present. Members must be on the roll and eligible to vote but do not qualify for an absentee ballot.

### 4.3 **Voting Eligibility**

- a) To be eligible to vote, a member must be at least 18 years of age, must reside in the area at least 6 months of the year, and must be regular in their attendance while in the area, as health permits.
- b) Members who are eligible to vote but who cannot be present at the business meeting may request an absentee ballot for one of the following reasons:

## THE BY-LAWS OF THE BUCKLEY GOSPEL TABERNACLE

### ARTICLE ONE: MEMBERSHIP

#### 1.1 **Requirements for Membership**

A prospective member of this church, with regular attendance for 6 months, must heartily subscribe to the statements of faith and discipleship as outlined in Article Three and Four of the Constitution. He must be a believer in God, have repented of sin, displayed faith in the pardoning grace of Jesus Christ, and seek to grow in Christ by the power of the Holy Spirit. (Romans 10:9-10) The prospective member shall be asked to attend a membership meeting and/or fill out the following forms: Response and Testimony, Skills, Talents, Hobbies and the Covenant of Membership. A prospective member shall be of the age of 16 or older.

#### 1.2 **Admission of Members**

- a) The name of the person desiring membership shall then be presented to the Executive Board by the Pastoral Staff Team.
- b) The prospective member's name shall then be presented to the Executive Board as a whole, along with the completed forms for membership as needed and any recommendations deemed necessary. A vote of the Board shall be taken. Upon the affirmative vote of 2/3 of the Board Membership the applicant shall be admitted to membership.
- c) For a letter of transfer from another church the prospective member would be asked to attend a membership meeting and/or fill out the following forms: Response and Testimony, Skills, Talents, Hobbies and the Covenant of Membership.

#### 1.3 **Membership Roll**

A permanent record of membership shall be kept by the Board Secretary in a database with a permanent copy placed at the end of each year's records. The record shall show the name of the member, the date of admission to membership, and the date and circumstances of any removal from membership. The Executive Board shall annually inspect this membership roll and see that it is kept faithfully up-to-date.

#### 1.4 **Dismissal of Members**

Membership at The Tabernacle is a covenant relationship. The membership roll is a list of those who have made and are endeavoring to keep

the membership covenant. It is expected that all who are members shall be regular in their attendance at The Tabernacle when they are in the area and as health permits. When members have permanently moved out of the area (for three (3) years or more) their membership shall be terminated here unless they are involved in Christian ministry as a pastor, pastor's wife, missionary, etc. Members who move are encouraged to unite with another congregation of believers as part of Christ's Church. A letter of recommendation shall be granted to any member who has left The Tabernacle in good standing, upon their request.

When there is a biblical cause for dismissal of a member, such cause shall be presented to the Executive Board in private session. After due examination of such causes, and after earnest effort to reclaim the errant member in a biblical manner, the Board may expel such a member, by a 2/3 vote.

## **ARTICLE TWO: EXECUTIVE BOARD**

### **2.1 Membership**

The Executive Board shall consist of not less than five (5) voting members, elected by the congregation. In addition to the voting members there shall be the following non-voting members: Pastor, [any Associate Pastor or assistant, as deemed necessary by the Lead Pastor] and any non-elected appointees [Treasurer, Secretary, and Trustees]. All Board Members must be members in good standing of The Tabernacle.

### **2.2 Duties**

- a) The Executive Board shall elect from their number the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Executive Board. The Executive Board shall appoint a Secretary, Treasurer, and Trustees. If Appointees are not from the elected Board they shall be non-voting.
- b) The Board shall act as the Pulpit committee to secure a Lead Pastor when needed, provided that their selection be presented to the membership for final approval, such approval requiring at least a 2/3 vote.
- c) The Lead Pastor shall be accorded a yearly interview by as many of the members of the Executive Board as desire to meet with him prior to the month when the Pastoral Vote will be taken, if one is to be taken.

- d) The Executive Board shall meet not less than four (4) times annually. The Chairman shall have the authority to call a Special Meeting of the Executive Board.
- e) The Chairman shall preside at all Business Sessions of the Board and the Church Membership, when he is able to do so.
- f) The Vice-Chairman shall preside at all Business Sessions when the Chairman is unable to do so.
- g) The Board Secretary shall keep record of all actions of the executive board and the membership rolls.
- h) The Treasurer shall be custodian of all church monies. A full record of receipts and expenditures shall be kept, with written reports to be presented monthly or as the Board may designate. The Board shall authorize expenditures of these funds. The Treasurer's books shall be audited each quarter by a Board appointee.
- i) Trustees are representative of the Executive Board and membership, and the overseers of all legal matters regarding the property of the church, such as insurance [including vehicular], maintenance, improvements, disposition of property, restricting use of property, care of titles, and other legal functions related to church property. The Trustees should oversee an inspection of the Church Plant and Parsonage at least every six (6) months and recommend to the Board any maintenance or improvements deemed necessary.
- j) Two-thirds of the Membership of the Board shall constitute a Quorum. (Two-thirds rounded to the nearest whole number.)
- k) The Executive Board shall appoint an eligible member to replace any Board member who resigns or is unable to complete his term.

## **ARTICLE THREE: COMMITTEES**

**3.1 Board appointed.** Any committee deemed necessary to the efficient and effective operation of the work of The Tabernacle may be appointed by the Executive Board.

**3.2 Pastor appointed.** The Pastor shall have the privilege of proposing a committee to the Executive Board for their approval, and shall have no committees not so approved.